Congress of the United States

Washington, BDE 20515

October 8, 2025

Erik Johnson

Deputy Field Office Director
Enforcement and Removal Operations
Seattle Field Office

12400 Tukwila International Boulevard
Seattle, WA 98168

Dear Mr. Johnson:

Thank you for coordinating the visit to the U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) facility in
downtown Portland on September 25, 2025. The facility tour and meeting with ICE staff was very informative,
and today we write to follow up on several items that we discussed during the visit. We received conflicting
information from ICE staff, and we remain extremely concerned about civil and human rights violations
occurring at the facility.

We are deeply concerned by the lack of oversight and accountability of ICE agents, including those operating
out of the Macadam facility. There are multiple instances of agents breaking car windows and ripping people
from their vehicles, holding knives to people’s necks, and shoving bystanders to the ground. In addition to this
unnecessary violence and use of force, ICE agents hide their identities by wearing masks and do not have
visible identification or badge numbers. This poses a serious safety concern and makes the entire community
less safe. We also heard about changes being made to expeditiously hire new ICE agents at the facility,
including compressing the training. In addition to unnecessary aggression perpetuated by ICE agents, we are
concerned about how new agents with less training might further escalate tensions in the community.

Because of the scale of immigration enforcement operations in Oregon and the lack of transparency around
DHS and ICE procedures under the current Trump administration, we demand answers to the following
questions:

1. What is the current process to initiate an initial review of a bond request at Enforcement and Removal
Operations (ERO)? Who at ERO is responsible for initial reviews of requests for bond?

2. What criteria is used to determine which requests for bond will be sent forward or denied? Please
provide any directives that outline these criteria.

3. Of the total number of detained noncitizens who have come through the facility since January 2025, how
many bond requests have been approved and how many have been denied?

4. We have seen reports that individuals with legal status have been detained. What criteria have agents
been given to determine who to detain?

5. There are several instances of immigrants with documented medical and health concerns or who were
recovering from surgery who were summarily deported. What standards are used to determine medical
clearance for deportation? Please provide a copy of those standards.

6. Masked ICE agents are unidentifiable in our communities and hide their identities. This raises
significant safety concerns. How are you holding your staff accountable for negligence and unnecessary
violence if ICE agents do not have identification or badge numbers visible?

7. We understand that hiring for the community relations position at the Macadam facility has been
challenging. What plans are in place to hire a Community Relations staff for the Macadam facility?
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8. There are multiple reports of ICE staff harassing volunteers outside of the facility. What training are
staff receiving on carrying out community enforcement? What plans are in place to guarantee that newly
hired staff are adequately trained on a condensed timeline?

9. How are you complying with Americans with Disabilities Act requirements and working to make sure
people with mobility issues are able to access the facility for appointments?

Thank you for your attention to this letter and we look forward to your prompt response.
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